Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street

Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203

phone:  716-856-6525

fax: 716-856-6754

web: buffalourbandevelopment.com

Buttalo Urban Bevelopment Corporation

Buffalo Urban Develppment Corporation
Board of Directors Meeting

Date: Tuesday, January 30, 2018
Time: 12:00 Noon
Place: BUDC/ECIDA Offices, 95 Perry Street, 5 Floor Conference Room
Buffalo, New York 14203

1.0 CALL TO ORDER
2.0 READING OF THE MINUTES (4ction) (Enclosure)

3.0 MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORTS (Deferred Due to Annual Audit) (Buffalo Brownfields
Redevelopment Fund Handout)

4.0 NEW BUSINESS

4.1 New Empire State Development Board Member - Governance Committee
Appointment (4ction) (Encl.)

4.2 Appointment of Officer — Assistant Treasurer (Acrion) (Enclosure)
4.3 683 Northland — Phase II Preconstruction Services (Acrion) (Enclosure)

4.4 Northland Road Project - Interim Funding/Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund
(BBRY) (4ction) (Enclosure)

4.5 Northland Beltline - Community Outreach Services Agreement (Action) (Enclosure)
4.6 Northland Beltline Project Update (Information)
4.7 Buffalo Building Reuse Project Update (Information)
4.8 Buffalo Lakeside Commerce Park Update (Information)
4.9 Information Package (Information)
5.0 LATE FILES
6.0 TABLED ITEMS
7.0 EXECUTIVE SESSION
8.0 ADJOURNMENT (A4crion)

Hop. Byron W. Brown, Board Chair » Dennis Peniman, Vice Chair » Peter M. Cammarata, President » David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
Mollie Profic, Treasurer - Bradley Bach, Assistant Treasurer » Kevin J. Zanner, Secretary « Brandye Merriweather, Vice President T



Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting
of
Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street

Buffalo, New York 14203
December 19, 2017

12:00 p.m.
1.0 Call to Order
Directors Present: Directors Absent:
James W. Comerford Thomas Beauford, Jr.
.Janique S. Curry Hon. Byron W. Brown (Chair)
Dennis W. Elsenbeck David J. Nasca
Darby Fisghkin Christopher J. Schoepflin

2.0

3.0

Dottie Gallagher-Cohen
Thomas R. Hersey, Jr.
Thomas A. Kucharski
Brendan R. Mehaffy
Kimberley A. Minkel

“Dennig M. Penman (Vice Chair)

Darius G. Pridgen
Craig A. Slater
Steven J. Stepniak
Maria R. Whyte

Officers Present:

Peter M, Cammarata, President

David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
Brandye Merriweather, Vice President
Mollie M. Profic, Treasurer

Kevin J. Zanner, Secretary

Others Present Dawn Boudreau, ECIDA; James Fink, Buffalo Business First, Jonathan Epstein, The
Buffalo News; Sakina Riddell, Esq., Cannon Heyman & Weiss, LLP; and Robert Sanders, Watfs
Architecture & Engineering.

Roll Call; Order of Business — The Secretary called the roll of directors at 12:15 p.m. and a
quorum of the Board was determined to be present. Ms. Curry and Mr. Mehaffy joined the meeting
during the presentation of item 3.0. Mr. Elsenbeck left the meeting during the presentation of item 4.4,
and Mr. Pridgen left the meeting after the presentation and vote regarding item 4.4.

Presentation of the Minutes - The minutes of the November 28, 2017 meeting of the Board of
Directors were presented. Mr. Slater made a motion to approve the meeting minutes. The motion was
seconded by Ms. Fishkin and unanimously carried.

Monthly Financial Reports — Ms. Profic presented the BUDC monthly financial report for the
period ending November 30, 2017, The unrestricted cash balance at the end of the period was
$9.789,297 and the net position at the end of the period was $24,458,871. Year-to-date revenue was
$10,628,683 and year-to-date expenses were $2,807,211, resulting in year-to-date net income of




4.0

BUDC Board of Directors Meeting — December 19, 2017

$7.821,473. Ms. Profic then reviewed the monthly balance sheet and income statement for 683
Northland LLC for the period ending November 30, 2017. In response to a question from Mr. Pridgen,
Mr. Cammarata noted that BUDC assisted two MBE contractors with respect to the payment of liability
insurance premiums for the 612 Northland construction work. There being no further discussion, Mr.
Pridgen made a motion to accept the financial reports. The motion was seconded by Mr. Comerford
and unanimously carried.

New Business

41

4.2

4.3

insurance Brokerage Services Recommendation — Ms. Profic presented her December
19, 2017 memorandum regarding the RFQ for insurance brokerage services. She indicated that
BUDC elected to participate in a joint RFQ process with EGIDA to solicit propesals for Insurance
brokerage services, including property/casualty, directors/officers and health/employee benefits
services. The RFQ was circulated to fifteen providers and was alsc advertised through muitiple
newsprint outlets. Five proposals were received. An evaluation team consisting of Peter
Cammarata, Mollie Profic and Phil Riggs reviewed and scored the proposals. The evaluation
team recommended Lawley for property and casualty services and Bene-Care, Inc. for health
and benefits services. Ms. Profic noted that the Audit & Finance Committee reviewed and
concurred with the evaluation team’s recommendation. Mr. Kucharski made a motion to
approve Lawley as BUDC's property & casualty broker of record and Bene-Care, Inc. as
BUDC's heaith and benefits broker of record, effective January 1, 2018. The motion was
seconded by Mr. Slater and (with Ms. Gallagher-Cohen abstaining) carried with thirteen
affirmative votes (13-0-1).

683 Northland — Phase Il Design Development Proposal - Mr. Stebbins presented his
December 19, 2017 memorandum regarding proposed Service Order No. 21 from Waitts
Architecture & Engineering to provide design development and historic preservation services for
Phase [l of the 683 Northiand project. The total cost of the work is $534,030.00, consisting of
$477,130.00 for design development work and $56,900.00 for historic preservation services.
Watts' design development proposal is based on an estimated Phase |l construction cost of
twenty-eight million dollars. Mr. Stebbins noted that design fees for similar projects range from
seven to ten percent of the total project cost, and that based on a 7.5% cost, the total design
cost for the Phase Il project would be approximately 2.1 million dollars. Design development
services are typically 20% to 25% of the total design cost, so Watts' proposed fee of
$477,130.00 is within that range of cost. Mr. Stebbins indicated that consistent with prior
practice, the Service Order was submitted to Gilbane and ESD for peer review, but the results of
that review are not yet available. In response to a question from Mr. Comerford, Mr. Stebbins
stated that the cost of the work was negotiated with Watts and the price was reduced. Mr.
Comerford noted that the compensation section of the Service Orders provides that the quoted
price is firm for 30 days only. He suggested that this provision be stricken from the Service
Order. At the conclusion of the discussion, Mr. Comerford a motion to approve Service Order
No. 21, subject to (i) receipt of peer review from Gilbane and ESD; (i) Watis' agreement to
delete the firm price limitation in the Service Order, and (jii) Watts' agreement to reduce the
$477,130.00 fee in the event that the fotal cost of the project is less than 28 million dollars. The
motion was seconded by Ms, Gallagher-Cohen and unanimously carried.

683 Northland_— Buffalo Manufacturing Works Letter of intent - Mr. Stebbins
circulated the proposed non-binding letter of intent to lease approximately 50,000 square feet of
space at 683 Northland to Buffalo Manufacturing Works (BMW). The lease is structured as a
fifteen year triple-net lease, with BMW responsible for its pro-rata share of costs and expenses
to be paid as additional rent. The lease will reflect a market-rate base rent of $7.85/sf. The target
date for completion of the improvements and BMW occupancy is June 1, 2019. Mr. Stebbins
noted that the tenant will be responsible for complying with certain community benefits reporting
requirements of the New Markets tax credits program. He also noted that BUDC will provide
operational support in the form of a separate operating subsidy, which BMW will use to make

2



4.4

4.5

4.6

BUDC Board of Directors Meeting — December 18, 2017

base rent payments under the lease. This Is needed for the tax credits transaction, and will cycle
through to the property owner (683 Northland LLC) and ultimately, BUDC. The Committee
discussed the proposed letter of intent. In response to a question from Ms. Curry, Mr. Stebbins
indicated that BMW is expected to create ten new jobs. There being no further discussion, Mr.
Penman made a motion to recommend that the Board of Directors approve the proposed letter
of intent and operational support for BMW. The motion was seconded by Mr. Kucharski and
unanimously carried.

683 Northland — Amendatory Resolutions for Tax Credits & KeyBank lLoan
Transaction — Mr. Stebbins presented his December 19, 2017 memorandum regarding the
federal and NYS Historic Rehabilitation tax credits transaction, the federal New Markets tax
credits transaction and the bridge loan financing with KeyBank. Mr. Stebbins first reviewed with
the Board the proposed updated terms for the KeyBank bridge loan financing. Copies of the
updated KeyBank term sheet were circulated. Mr. Stebbins reviewed the term sheet, which
provides for an increase in the loan amount from twenty million doliars to thirty million dollars
and an increase in the term of the loan from thirty months to forty-two months. The financing has
been restructured as two facilities in the amount of twenty million dollars and ten million dollars,
respectively. Mr. Stebbins explained that an Increase in the amount of financing is due to the
acceleration of Phase 1i of the project. Mr. Stebbins reviewed the revised lending terms and
conditions applicable to the two facilities. Except for an increase in the upfront fee, terms for the
first facility are nearly identical to the terms initially proposed by KeyBank. A higher rate of
interest wili apply to the second facility. Mr. Stebbins also indicated that KeyBank is requiring a
first lien mortgage instead of a negative pledge. Mr. Stebbins then introduced Sakina Riddell
from Cannon, Heyman & Weiss. Ms. Riddell reviewed the modifications to the transactions
deseription as set forih in the proposed  amendatory” Resolutions of the- Board o Directors,
discussion followed regarding the transaction and risk mitigation. Mr. Stebbins indicated that the
risks associated with the transaction are those typically associated with a real estate
development and that the prime tenants will be responsible for their pro-rata share of building
operating costs. There being no further discussion, upon motion made by Mr. Kucharski,
seconded by Mr. Stepniak and unanimously carried, it was resolved, that the Board of Directors
adopt the Resolutions of the Board of Directors of Buffalo Urban Development Corporation and
that a true and complete copy of the Resolutions be attached to the minutes of this meeting.

612 Northland — SHPO Related Architectural Proposal - Mr. Stebbins presented his
December 19, 2017 memorandum regarding the November 24, 2017 proposal from consultant
Kathleen A. Kinan, R.A. to provide additional design services for the 612 Northland project at a
cost of $7700.00. Mr. Stebbins stated that this additional design work was not contemplated
under the original scope of work and is necessary due to SHPO requirements that are now
applicable to the project. The cost for the additional design work is eligible to be reimbursed with
Restore NY grant funds, with a 10% match from the Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund.
Ms. Gallagher-Cohen made a motion to approve the November 24, 2017 proposal to provide
additional design services at a cost not to exceed $7,700.00, to utilize the Buffalo Brownfields
Redevelopment Fund as the 10% match for this work, and to authorize the President or
Executive Vice President to execute an amendment of the existing agreement with Ms. Kinan.
The motion was seconded by Ms. Whyte and unanimously carried.

Northland Beltline Project Update — Mr. Stebbins refetred Board members to the one-
page monthly report prepared by Gilbane, included in the Board materials. The report indicates
MBE utilization of 28% and WBE utilization of 5.5%. Mr. Stebbins then circulated a written
report/update regarding the Northiand Belt Line project. He highlighted a few items from the
report, including the scheduling of January g™ stakeholders meeting, an informational meeting
that was held on December 13" for the food service vendor opportunity at 683 Northland, and
progress on the 612 Northland project and Northland Avenue road/right-of-way infrastructure
project.




5.0
6.0

7.0
8.0

BUDC Board of Directors Meeting — December 19, 2017

4.7 Buffalo Building Reuse Project Update — Ms. Merriweather presented the Buffalo Building

4.8

4.9

Reuse Program update. Responses to the 4" quarter request for proposals for BBRP loan
program funding are due on December 30" Ms. Merriweather indicated that the Loan
Committee will be convened in early January to provide feedback fo the Downtown Committee
regarding the C.W. Miller Livery project and the McCarley Gardens project. The Loan
Committee will also discuss potential modifications fo the loan program and will review the
downtown residential housing study that is being prepared by Real Property Research Group,
Inc. Ms. Merriweather then reported that Main & Cathedral Development paid off the full balance
of its BBRP loan this week. Ms. Merriweather also reported on the Erie/Shelton Square
infrastructure project, including a stakeholders meeting that took place on December 12", Ms.
Merriweather closed her report with an update regarding the Queen City Pop-up program. BUDC
received positive feedback from the retailers through the mid-cycle Interview process. Ms.
Merriweather noted that some retailers requested and were granted permission to operate with
extended hours through 7:00 p.m. To date, 33 businesses have participated in the program,
including thirteen MBE businesses and one WBE business.

Buffalo Lakeside Commerce Park Update — Mr. Cammarata presented a brief update
regarding Buffalo Lakeside Commerce Park. The Parcel 4 Superfund project has been
suspended for the winter months and will start again in early April. The project is expected to be
complete by July 1, 2018, Over 14,000 cubic yards of backfill have been delivered to the site to
date.

Information _Package Mr. Cammarata reviewed the informational, marketing and media
materials that were included in the monthly information package provided to the Board.

Late Files — None.

Tabled items — None.

Executive Session — None.

Adjournment — There being no further business to come before the Board, upon motion made by
Mr. Kucharski, seconded by Ms. Fishkin and unanimously carried, the December 19, 2017 meeting of
the Board of Directors was adjourned at 1:25 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Kevin J. ZannerSecretary




RESOLUTIONS OF THE BOARD QF DIRECTORS
OF
BUFFALQ URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

Refetence is hereby made to Bxhibit A attached hereto and made a part hereof (fhe

“Trensactions Description™), All definifions not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings
get forth on the Transactions Description.

The Board of Directors of Buffalo Urban Development Corporation (“BUDC”) hereby
adopt the following resolutions and consent to the taking of the corporate actions hereinafter
i contemplated therein or thereby), and these resolutions have not been amended,

ot |

e e b -t

" modified or repealed:

RESOLVED, that (i) BUDC and (ii) a1l affiliates of which BUDC holds a direct or indirect
interest ave hereby authorized and empowered to enter into the applicable trangactions more
particularly desctibed in the Transactions Description, including but not Jimited to the Master
¥ sase, the Construction, the NMTC Structure, the NMTC Guarenties. the Grants, the DG Grant,
the Equity Confributions, the Leverage Loan, the BA QLICT Loans, the NTCIC QLICY Loans, the
HTC IM Admission, the HTC Guaranties, the Pass Through Agreement, the Development
Activities, the Assignment of Contraots, the Construction Services, the Architectural Sexvices, the
BBRC Contribution, the KeyBank Bridge Loan, the KeyBank Guaranty, the KeyBank Managing
Member Guaranty, the Master Tenant Lom, the Sponsor Conttibution, the Easement and the
Assignment of Contracts (collectively, the “Transactions™); and itis

FURTHER RESOLVED, that () BUDC and (i) all afffliates of which BUDC holds 2. direct
or indirect interest are hereby authorized and empowered to execute and deliver any and all
documents necessary to consummate the Transactions (coll ively, the “Transaction
Documents™), which documents may contain such terms, provisions, conditions, stipulations and
agreements as BUDC mdy deem proper and advisable, and that the Chair, the Vice Chair, the
President or the Vice President of BUDC (each an “Anuthotized Representative”) is authorized to
act on behalf of BUDC tfo execnte and defiver such Trmsaction Documents as such Avuthorized
Representative may deem proper and advisable in order to effectuate the Transactions; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED that BUDC and all affilistes of which BUDC holds & direot or
indirect interest be and hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to borrow such amonnts &8
set forth in the Transaction Documents, upon such terms and conditions as the Authorized
Representative of BUDC determines, the same 1o be conclusively evidenced by bis execution and
delivery of such agreements in the name and on behaif of BUDC; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED that BUDC and all affiliates of which BUDC holds a direct or
indirect interest be and hereby is authorized, empoweyed and directed to mortgage, pledge, assign,
and grant such security interests in and otherwise transfer such real, personal or mixed property




10w or hereafter owned by BUDC as collateral security for any and all liabilities of BUDC to the
parties as set forth in the Transactions Descxiption, whenever and however grising which are
necessary to consmumate the Transaction; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED that BUDC and of] affiliates of which BUDC holds e dizect ot
indirect ftetest be and hereby is auftorized, empowered and directed to modify, supplement or
apaend any such mortgages, agreements, documents and collateral secutity, from time to time and
the Authorized Ropresentative determines to be in fhe best interests of BUDC; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that in addition to and without limiting the generality of the
foregoing resolutions with respect to the foregoing transactions, the Authorized Representative,
be, and is, authorized and directed to take quch further action in comection: with said transactions
and to execute and deliver such instnuments as sach Aufhorized Representative, with advice of
counsel may deem appropriate to catry out the foregoing resohutions; and the taking of such action

ket

or execution of such instrumenis shail be deemed conclusive evidence of the deferminafion of such
Anthorized Representative that such action or execution was appropriate and in the best intevest of
BUDC it being understood that modifications to the ebove trensactions may need to occur in order
1o facilitate the closing of the transactions; md it is

FURTHWR RRSOUVED, that all action. taken and all instraments executed by authorized

persons on behalf of BUDC prior to the adoption of these resolutions with respect to fhe financmg
of the Projoct and all matters related thereto, are hereby ratified, confirmed and approved.

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGBE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

Resohutlons —~BUDC 2




Resolutions — BUDC

ee: N

TRANSAC D TIO

FE—




EXHIBIT A
AUTHORIZED TRANSACTIONS FOR THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE
683 NORTHLAND PROJECT

Factual Description: Buffalo Urban Development Corporation, a New York not-for-profit
corporation (the “Sponsor™), is the sponsor of the substantial rehebilitation of an approximately
242,000 square foot beilding (the “Building”) located at 683 Notthland Avenve, Buffalo, New
York (the “Project”). 683 Northland LLC (the “Company”) is a New York limited lability
company which has been formed for the purposes of developing; owning, constructing and leasing
the Project. 683 WTC, L1C, a New York limited liability company (the “Mamaging Member™),
holds or is expected 1o hold a 95% membership intetest in the Company, and BBRC Land
Company I, LLC, a New York limited liability company (the “BBRC Member”), holds or is
expected to hold a 5% membership interest in the Company. The Sponsor is the sole member of
the Managing Member, and Buffalo Brownfield Restoration Carporstion, a New York not-for-
profit corporation (the “BBRC™), is the sole member of the BERC Member, 683 Northland Master
Tenant, LLC (the “Master Tenagt”) is a New York Yirnited liability company which has been
formed for the purposes of developing, leasing and operating the Project. The Master Tenant is
currently owned by the Managing Member. In connection with the development oi the Projett, it
is anticipated that the Sponsor, the Company, the Managing Membet, the BERC Member, the
BBRC and the Master Tenant together with their affiliates (coliectively, the “Participants™), as
applicable, will enter into a series of transactions described ag follows:

Transaction 1 — The Company and the Master Tenant are expected to enter into a masier lease
agreement and any other related documents whereby (i) the Company will lease the entire Project
to the Master Tenant (the “Master Lease”), and (ii) the Company will be responsible for the
development, rehabilitation, construction and operation of the Project (the “Construction™);

Transaction 2 — In connection with the operation of the Project, the Master Tenant, as lessor, is
expected to enter into various commercial subleases with various subtenants, including, without
fimitation, 8 WNY Workforce Training Center Lease (the “WTC Lease™) with The Economic
Development Group, Inc. (the “EDG"), as lessee, for commercial space in the Building
(collectively, the “Project Subleases™);

Transaction 3 — In furtherance of the development of the Project, a financing structure will be
utilized which employs, among other things, the federal New Markets Tax Credit (‘'NMTC")
program as set forth in 26 U.8.C. Section 45D (the “NMTC Structure”} which is set forth below,
The NMTC S$tructure comterplates the making of a leverage loan to an investment fund, the
proceeds of which leverage loan will, together with certain equity investments, be invested in the
form of ome or more qualified equity mvestments (“QEIs”) in one or more community
development entities or affiliates thereof (“*CDEs”) that have NMTC allocation authority awarded
by a division of the United States Treasury Department. The proceeds of the QEls wiil be loaned
by the CDEs to the Company as a qualified active low income community business (the

1

B s v |

Fp————— L PR Sl

e e



“OALICB™) in the form of qualificd low-income community investment loans (“OLICI Loans™)
to enable the development, construction and rehabilitation of the Project;

Transaction 4 — In connection with the NMTC Structure, the Sponsor and the Company are
expected to enter into an unconditional guarenty of New Markets Tax Credits, put price and
environmental indemnification, and the Sponsor and the Company are expected to enter into an

trrvestment fund put and call agreement and any and all documents to be entered into in connection
therewith (collectively, the “NMTC Guarenties”);

Transaction 5 — The Sponsor has applied for and accepted various grants and from Empire State
Development (BSD), New York Power Authority (NYPA), National Grid and the City of Buffalo
and may apply for other grants as necessary to support the development, constraction,
rehabilitation and operation of the Project (collectively, the “Grants™);

Transaction 6~ It is expected that the Sponsor will use a portion of the proceeds of the Grants to
make a grant to EDG in an amount sufficient to enable EDG to pay the pre-paid rent obligations
owing to Master Tenant under the EDG Lease (the “BEDG Grant™);

Transaction 7 — The Sponsor and the Participants are expected to contribyte equity to the Project
from various sources including, without limitation, (a) & portion of the proceeds of the Grants, and
(b) any proceeds received from & refund from the State of New York of certain New York State
Brownfield Tax Credits claimed by the Sponsor or its affiliaes wiihi respect id ilie Project {the
“Bquity Contributions™);

Transaction 8 — The Sponsor is expected to use a portion of the proceeds of the Grants to fond &
leverage loan in the principal amount of approximately [$9,304,400] (the “Levarage Loan®) that
the Sponsor expects o malce to Northland NMTC Investment Fund, LLC (the “Tnyestment Fund”),
100% of which is owned by Citibank, N.A. or an affiliate thereof (the “NMTC Investor™). The
Leverage Loan combined with an equity investment by the NMTC Investor into the Investroent
Fund will be used by the Investment Fund to make QEIs in two (2} CDEs that have NMTC
allocation authority awarded by a division of the United States Treasury Departiment. The QEIls
will generate NMTCs for the NMTC Investor and will be primarity used by the CDEs fo make

QLICI Loans to the Compeny to enable the development, construction and rehabilitation of the
Project;

Transaction 9 — The Compeny is expected to borrow from BACDE NMTC Fund 16, LLC the
proceeds of the following loans: () aloan in the principal amount of approximately 1$9,304,400]
(the “BA QLICY Loan A™); and (b) & loan in the principal amount of approximately [$4,345,600]
{the “BA_QLICT Loan B” and together with the BA QLICI Loan A, the “BA QLICI Loans”}. The
BA QLICI Loans will be collateralized and secured by, among other collateral and seourity
instrements, a mortgage on the Project, and may be further memorialized by a credit agreement, a
promissory note, guatanty agreements and other loan documents;

Transaction 10 — The Company is expected to borrow from NTCIC-Northland, L1C the proceeds
of the following losns: (a) a loan in the principal amount of approximately [$3,323,000] (the
“NTCIC QLICI Loan A™); end (b) a loen in the principal amount of approximately [$1,327,000]

2

10

et | BT |

R

IS S



(the “NTCIC QLICI Loan B” and together with the NTCIC QLICI Loan A, the “NTCIC QLICI
Loans™). The NTCIC QLICI Loans will be collateralized and secured by, among other collateral
and security instruments, a mortgage on the Project, and may be forther memorialized by a credit
agresment, a promissory note, guaranty agreements and other loan documents;

Transaction 11 ~To facilitate the syndication of Federal and State historic tax eredits, the Master
Tenant is expected to admit NTCIC HTC Community Fund I, LLC (the* C Investor Member™)
with 2 99% interest in accordance with an amended and restated operating agreement of the Master
Tenant between the Managing Member and the HTC Investor Member, and the Master Tenant,
Managing Member, the Company and the Sponsor, as applicable, are expected to enter inte any
and afl documents to be entered into in connection with such admission including any required
guaranty agreements in favor of the HTC Investor Member (the “HTC IM Admission”);

TFransaction 12 - In connection with the HTC IM Admission, the Sponsor and the Company are
expected to enter into certain guarantees including but not limited to & guaranty of the HTC
Tnvestor Member put option price, an environmental indemnification, a construction completion
goeranty, an opersting deficits gnaranty and a guaranty of the historic tax credits should there be
a recapture of the historic tax credits and HTC Investor Member suffers a loss as a result
(collectively, the “HTC Guaranties™);

Transaction 13 — The Corpany and ihe Masier Tenanl aie ‘expected to enter into a pass through-
agreement and eny other related documents for purposes of assigning the Federal and State historic
tax credits to the Master Tensnt (the “Pass Through Agreement”);

Transaction 14 —In cornection with the development of the Project, it is expeoted that the Sponsor
will serve as the developer for the Project and one or more of the Participants will be required to
engage in various development activities and enter into various agreements and other transaction
documents, including without Limitation eny agreements for development services, consuliant
services and design services (the “Development Activities");

Feansaction 15 — The Sponsor and the Company are expected to entor into an assigmment
agreement whereby the Sponsor will assign to the Company and the Company will teke by
assigmnent various contracts entered into by the Sponsor in connection with the Project prior to
the date hereof (the “Assignment of Contracts™);

Transaction 16 — The Company is expected fo enter into or take by assignment from the Sponsor
& construction management agreement and any other related documents with Gilbane Building
Company for general contracting services for the construction and rehebilitation of the Project (the
“Construction Services™);

Transaction 17 — The Company is expected to enter into or take by assignment from the Sponsor
an architects agreement and any other related documents with Watts Architecture & Engineering,
DP.C for architectural services for the construction and rehabilitation of the Project (the
“Architectural Services™);

11

sam g o =V




Transaction 18 — The Sponsor is expeoted to use a portion of the proceeds of the Grants to make
a donation to BBRC, that will use the proceeds of such donation to make a loan to BERC Member
that will use such loan proceeds to make a cepital contribution to Cotnpany to facilitate the
rehabilitation of the Project (the “BBRC Contiibution™);

Transaction 19 — The Company is expected to borrow from KeyBank, National Assooistion the
proceeds of & loan in the maximum aggregate principal amount of approximately $30,000,000 (the
“KeyBank Bridge Loan™), the material terms of which are outlined in that certain Draft Term Sheet
dated December 5, 2017, as attached to and made a part of that certain letter from KeyBank,
National Association dated December 7, 2017 (the “Term Sheet”). The XeyBank Bridge Loan is
expected to be secured by such collateral as outlined in the Term Sheet;

Transaction 20 — In connection with the KeyBank Bridge Loan, the Sponsor is expected to enter
into a guaranty of the KeyBank Bridge Loan and eny and ell documents to be entered into by the
Sponsor in connection therewith (the “KeyBank Guaranty™);

Transaction 21 — In connection with the KeyBank Bridge Loan, the Managing Member is
expected to enter into & guaranty of the KeyBank Bridge Loan and any and all documents to be

entered into by the Managing Member in connection therewith (the “KeyBank Meanaging Member
Guarenty”);

Transaciion 22~ i connection with the XeyBank Bridge Loan, the BBRC Member is expseted
to enter into a guaranty of the KeyBank Bridge Loan and any and all documents to be entered info
by the BBRC Member in cormection therewith {the “KeyBank BBRC Member Guaraniy™);

Transaction 23 — The Master Tenant is expeoted. to use a portion of the proceeds from the
syndication of the Federal and State historic tax credits to the Master Tenant to make 2 loan to the
Sponsor in the approximate amount of the pre-paid reut obligations owing to the Master Tenant
for the Project (the “Master Tenant Loan™), and the Sponsor is expected to use the proceeds of the
Master Tenant Loan to make & capital contribution to the Borrower to facilitate the leasing of the
Project (the “Sponsor Contribution™);

Transaction 24 — The Sponsor’s wholly-owned subsidiary, NorDel TI, LLC, is expected to grant
an easement to the Company for parking and related uses at 664, 688 and 659 Northland Avenue
(the “Basement”); and

Transaction 25 — The Sponsor end the Company shall enter into an assignment agreement
whereby the Sponsor shall assign to the Comparny and the Company shall take by assignment any
and all contracts entered into by the Sponsor in connection with the Project prior to the date hereof
(the “Assignment of Contracts™).

12

bt i

terrn o netnar ] r
HE

on——— T EEE LRl

e miesg et s gm0

o et e en




Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Petry Street

Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203

phone:  716-856-6523

fax: 716-856-6754

web: buffnlourbandevelopment.com
Item 4.1
MEMORANDUM
TO: Buffalo Urban Development Corporation Board of Directors
FROM: Thomas Kucharski, Governance Committee Chair
RE: New Empire State Development Board Member — Governance Committee
Appointment
DATE: January 30, 2018

Congratulations to Chris Schoepflin, who has been appointed to the position of Senior Vice
President at Empire State Development. Michael Ball has been appointed Regional Director of
ESD, and thus will replace Chris on the Board in accordance with BUDC’s Certificate of
Incorporation. At a meeting of the Governance Committee on January 23, 2018, the Committee

recommended that Mr. Ball be appointed to the Governance Committee through June 2018.

ACTION:
1 am requesting Board approval for the appointment of Michael Ball to the BUDC

Governance Committee through June 2018.

Hor. Byren W. Brows, Board Chair » Denmis Penman, Vice Chair » Peter M. Cammaratz, President * David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
Mollie Profic, Treasurer » Bradley Bach, Assistant Treasurer * Kovin J. Zanner, Secretary * Brandye Merriweather, Vice President

13

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

il



Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street

Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203

phone:  716-856-6525

fax:  716-856-6754

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

web: buffalourbandevelopment.com
Item 4.2
MEMORANDUM
TO: Buffalo Urban Development Corporation Beard of Directors
FROM: Thomas Kucharski, Governance Committee Chair
RE: Appointment of Officer — Assistant Treasurer
DATE: January 30, 2018

At a meeting of the Governance Committee on January 23, 2018, the Commitiee
recommended that Atiga Abidi (ECIDA Senior Accountant) be appointed to the position of
Assistant Treasurer through June 2018. Atiga’s employment at ECIDA began on January 16,

2018, replacing Bradley Bach.

ACTION:
T am requesting Board approval for the appointment of Atiga Abidi as Assistant Treasurer

through June 2018.

Hon, Byron W, Brown, Board Chair * Dennis Penman, Vice Chair = Peter M. Cammarata, President » David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
Mollis Profic, Treasurer » Bradley Bach, Assistant Treasurer » Kevin J. Zanuer, Secretary * Brandye Merriweather, Vice President ]

14



Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street

Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203

pbone:  716-836-6525

fax: 716-856-6754

web: buffalourbandevelopment.com

=5, Wi e By i, -
Buffalo UrDevelopment Corparation

Item 4.3
MEMORANDUM

TO: BUDC Board of Directors

FROM: David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
SUBJECT: 683 Northland - Phase II Preconstruction Services
DATE: January 30. 2018

As we move into Design Development for Phase II of the project at 683 Northland, we are
preparing for Gilbane Building Company to commence the provision of Preconstruction Services
for this Phase of the project. Gilbane’s Preconstruction work for Phase I resuited in several
million dollars in savings through value engineering, improved the constructability of the final
design, and allowed us to advance significant work early to maintain our aggressive schedule.

Gilbane is proposing that the Phase II preconstruction services include an additional cost
estimate, at the Construction Documents Phase (3 vs. 2 for Phase I), continuing and expanding
the M/WBE and workforce outreach, and development of early bid packages to fast-track
construction. The proposed cost for this work is $142,640. The funding for this work would be
provided from the $34.3 million project funding budgeted for this phase, which includes a
combination of State grants and tax credit financing. This work would be ¢ligible for funding
from the Phase I ESD funding, if necessary.

This proposal was reviewed with the Real Estate Committee at its January 23, 2018 meeting and
recommended for approval by the Board.

ACTION:

We are requesting Board authorization to amend the existing construction management
agreement with Gilbane Building Company to provide Preconstruction Services for Phase Il of
the 683 Northland Avenue project at a cost of $142,640, and to authorize the President or

Executive Vice President to execute and deliver the amendment to the construction management
agreement on behalf of 683 Northland LLC.

Hon. Byron W. Brown, Board Chair  Dennis Penman, Vice Chair » Peter M. Cammarata, President « David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
Mollic Profic, Treasurer « Bradley Bach, Assistant Treasurer * Kevin . Zanner, Secretary « Brandye Merriweather, Vice President it ™

15



1021 Main Street, Buffalo, New York 14203 Telephone 716.878.3309

January 22, 2018

Mr. David Stebbins, Executive Vice President
683 Northland LLC

95 Perry Street

Buffalo, NY 14203

RE: 683 Northland Phase 2 Preconstruction Proposal for Phase 2 of the Workforce Training
Center Buiiding

Dear Dave:

Gilbane is pleased to submit this proposal for Preconstruction services to support 683n Northland LLC
and BUDC in developing Phase 2 of the Workforce Training Center as follows:
e We will attend any meetings required
» For this phase 2 we planned on 3 estimates. (In Phase 1 we only provided 2 estimates and
relied on hidding for the final canstruction value. We believe it necessary to pravide the 3™
estimate as a tool to maintain the budget desired by BUDC.)
We will provide Value Engineering services following each estimate issue.
Continuing and expanding the M/WBE and workforce outreach that was started in Phase 1.
Then finally developing the GMP.
Terry LoConte will be spearheading and managing these preconstruction activities so will be
billable for this work.
 IDC (interdisciplinary document coordination) review and BIM modeling associated with the
design assist discussed has not been included in this proposal. Once the extent of the need has
been determined it can be authorized at that time.

e © o »

The estimated cost for the above services is $142,640 and will be billed on a reimbursable basis:

We anticipate the need to fast track the project and contract for some of the construction work similar
to Phase 1 and are prepared to plan and execute that strategy.

We are prepared to proceed immediately upon approval but have already started in partlmpatlon at
meetings. The schedule as presented to us is for Schematic documents to be complete the 1* of the
year with completion of design and start of finat bidding occurring in April. Historic approval again is
not anticipated until approximately June 1, 2018, after the start of bidding, contracting and
construction.

We will prepare an amendment to our contract for these services once you have confirmed their
acceptance.

1|Page

16



Respectfully,
Giibane Building Company

TS

Terence E LoConte
Project Executive

XC: Peter Cammarata, John LaRow, Brett Stiehler

Page |2

17



Gilbane Bullding Company
7 Southwoods Blvd.

3rd Floor

Albany, NY 12211

{518) 472-4801

Northiand Phas 2 Preconstruction Owner: 683 Northland LLC
Buffalo, NY A/E: Watts Architects & Engineers

PROPOSAL SUNMMARY

1oefis thra 7/01/1%

TOTAL PRE-CONSTRUCTION COST 140,690
GENERAL CONDITIONS

PERSONNEL COST
FIELD OFFICE SUPPORT COST

140,690

TOTAL GENERAL REQUIREMENTS COST 1,950

18



Gllbane Bullding Company

7 Sauthwoods Blvd.

3rd Floar
ne Albany, NY 12211

(51B) 472-4801

Northland Phas 2 Preconstruction Owner: 683 Northland LLC
Buffalo, NY AfE: Watts Architects & Engineers

PRE-CONSTRUCTION

T - L =l
a
- E g g
Ely AREE AR
5 LR s|E|E|E|%
2 K 3 s | 5 g £ =] 8
b 3 2| 3 £ 1 &| % Bl G E R ‘
@ w5 g% H g -4 2| 5 4
3 §lElezi§) 2 HEIEHIR IR I
2 o £ = -] =) 5
£ slZ18 30513 AHIEIR IR 8
. S| BlE 81814 ErE B Al e g 203 g
Bl |8 S| B B L2128 < g|s]slsi58]|35] & §
2 S| = ] [ alsl &g 3 @ [} & ] =!G lé &
L. % 16 88 16 i@ 26 ;s FTOE TS S T o s 1
AR s i aas s Ml o L Py o e R R SR R . LT
1] Project Executive 1 15 4 ] 16 | % w | s [ m | sz
2§ PLAStudy Manager ‘[
3§ Schedullng Manager ! : ; [
43 Chief Estimator i w | | e : L | mo s
5§ Arch /vl / Structural Estimator - w w0 | | | 1 m Do |
6! Electrical Estimator ‘ : i TR : u i o Wm0
#] Mechanical Estimator i 16 E ; 4 } : B 12,180 !
8 Plumbing Estimator ‘ 16 u | o : : ‘ : @ 1 1218
9} Purchasing Agent E ‘ : : . E '
10} Purchastng Asslstant ' ) | ; ' : ] i i v ;
11; CostControl l J : | E : [ E
R -  — T ]
12| Energy Services Manager l I : i JI ; i
13; Project Manager E \ i 1 ' I : ! 1 I
18! Praject Engineer | ! ‘ | ; i |
vt i i . i i : — 1
s voc P : : A - - ;
16{ 1DCEngineer L I

Total Lahpr Expense 29,550
1 Travel Expense a Mo. = 2,000
2 Blueprints, Coples, Pastage, Telephone, etc q Mo. 500 2,000
3 Bid Set Reproduction / Distribution / Express Est. E
4 Bullding Envelope Design Review Mr
5 Waterprocfing Peer Review Hr -
] CASNY Outreach 64 Hrs WE 6400
7 Hrs -
B Hrs =
9 communlcation - tablet and cell 4 Mo. 175 700
10 4 Me. .
n 4 Mo,
12 4 Mo.
13 4 Mo.
14 4 Mo.

19



Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street

Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203

phone:  716-856-6525

fax:

web:

716-856-6754
buffalourbandevelopment.com
Item 4.4
MEMORANDUM
TO: BUDC Board of Directors

FROM: David A, Stebbins, Executive Vice President

SUBJECT: Northland Road Project — Interim Funding / Buffalo Brownfields
Redevelopment Fund (BBRF)

DATE: January 30. 2018

A key component of the Northland Corridor Redevelopment Project is the road and right-of-way
(ROW) improvements to Northland Avenue, between Fillmore Avenue and Grider Street (the
“Northland Road Project™). These improvements are necessary to support the City and State’s
$60 million investment in the WNY Workforce Training Center (WTC) and the Northland
Corridor, as well as to attract other investment and businesses to the neighborhood. The goal is
to create an environment comparable to an urban business campus.

Funding for the Northland Road Project will come from the $10.3 million-dollar Empire State
Development grant (Z415) to BUDC for the Northland Project, as well as a National Grid Urban
Corridors Grant of $250,000. The Board approved a Grant Agreement with the City of Buffalo
in the amount of $3.4 million to cover construction and the engineer’s inspection work at its
April 25, 2017 meeting.

Although the cost of this work is covered by the ESD Grant, cash flow for payment of contractor
invoices are an issue, with a limited amount of cash on-hand and a 2-3-month processing period
for receiving reimbursements from the State. We are therefore requesting authorization to utilize
up to $1 million from the Buffalo Brownfields Redevelopment Fund (BBRF) for a period of up
to 90 days to bridge the reimbursement gap. This would provide sufficient cash on-hand to fund
payments for the Northland Road Project. In the event that it is determined that more than 90
days is required, we would seek further Board authorization for use of these funds.

This item was reviewed with the Real Estate Committee at its January 23, 2018 meeting and
recommended for approval by the Board.

ACTION:

We are requesting Board authorization to utilize up to $1 million from the BBRF for a period of
up to 90 days to advance payments for the Northland Road Project, with such amount to be
repaid to the BBRF from ESD grant funds; and to authorize the President, Executive Vice
President or Treasurer to execute and deliver such agreements and documents and to take such
actions as may be reasonably necessary or appropriate to implement this action.

Hon. Byron W. Brown, Board Chair * Dennis Penman, Vice Chair = Peter M. Cammarata, President » David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
Mollie Profic, Treasurer » Bradley Bach, Assistant Treasurer « Kevin I. Zanner, Secretary » Brandye Merriweather, Vice President

20

i



Buffalo Urban Development Corporation
95 Perry Street

Suite 404

Buffalo, New York 14203

pbone:  716-856-6525

fax: 716-856-6754

web: buffalourbandevelopment.com

Buffalo Urban Development Corporation

Item 4.5

MEMORANDUM

TO: Buffale Urban Development Corporation Board of Directors
FROM: Peter M. Cammarata, President
RE: Northland Beltline — Community Qutreach Services Agreement

DATE: January 30, 2018

Since March 1, 2015, Sandy White (Mustard Seed World Consulting Group) has been
working with BUDC to provide community outreach services for the Northland Beltline project.
Over the lasi three years, Sandy has become an integral part of our team; woiking with BUBC
staff, the Mayor’s communications staff, and the Northland Stakeholders Group. Most recently,
she has assisted in introducing Stephen Tucker (President and CEO of the Northland Workforce
Training Center) to the Northland community.

Sandy has provided outreach services under two consecutive contracts ($25,500 each)
during this petiod. Sandy’s most recent contract expired on December 31, 2017. We are currently
working with Sandy to develop a contract valued at $24,000 for 2018. We are refining the scope
of services for this additional engagement according to the advancement of the overall project.
The cost of Sandy’s services is reimbursed through the ESD (Z336) Grant.

ACTION:

I am requesting Board approval for BUDC to enter into a one year agreement with Mustard
Seed World Consulting Group for Northland Beltline community outreach services, at a cost not
to exceed $24,000.

Hon. Byron W, Brown, Board Chair » Dennis Penrvan, Vice Chair » Peter M. Cammarata, President » David A. Stebbins, Executive Vice President
Mollie Profic, Treasurer » Bradley Bach, Assistant Treasurer « Kevin J. Zanner, Secretary » Brandye Merriweather, Vice President i

21



